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2038 20
15.315
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20.315
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2021 12
5,610,252.51 69.48
693,509.86 8.59
665,077.74 8.24
475,051.26 5.88
352,681.69 4.37
117,366.89 1.45
7,913,939.95 98.00
161,154.77 2.00
8,075,094.72
928,797,395 100-00
2021 12
743,826,028 69.48
91,947,855 8.59
88,178,229 8.24
62,983,883 5.88
46,759,717 4.37
15,560,894 1.45
1,049,256,606 98.00
21,366,440 2.00
1,070,623,046 100.00
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2021 12
ISANDERS RE LTD 0.0
2022/4/7 {10,000 | 100.00]1,000,000.00f 80.67| 806,666.67 4.6%
07APR22 144A FRN
FRONTLINE RE L 0.0
2026/7/6 | 7,500 | 100.00] 750,000.00f 79.33 594,937.50 3.4%
06JUL26 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0
2022/12/10| 5,000 | 100.00] 500,000.00] 101.87] 509,350.00] 2.9%
10DEC22 144A FRN
PHOENICIAN RE 0.0
2027/12/14] 5,000 | 100.00] 500,000.00] 101.65 508,243.75 2.9%
14DEC27 144A FRN
INTERGRITY RE 4.38
2027/6/10] 5,000 | 100.00f 500,000.00] 101.00] 505,000.00] 2.9%
10JUN27 144A FRN
ATLAS CAP UK 7.05088
2025/6/9 | 5,000 | 100.00] 500,000.00f 100.33 501,631.25 2.9%
09JUN25 144A F
TAILWIND RE L 9.46
2025/1/8 | 5,000 | 100.00] 500,000.00f 100.02] 500,093.75 2.9%
08JAN25 144A FRN
AZZURRO RE Il 4.5
2027/1/5 | 2,500 | 113.18] 282,937.62 115.23] 288,084.68 1.7%
05JAN27 144A FRN
ORANGE CAPITA 3.25
2025/1/17] 2,500 | 114.50| 286,238.21] 114.87] 287,180.84 1.7%
17JAN25 144A FRN
IVINDMILL 11 RE 0.0
10 2027/7/5 | 2,500 | 112.23] 280,562.52| 114.63 286,574.33 1.6%
05JUL27 144A FRN
HEXAGON REINSU 9.2
11 2025/1/17] 2,500 | 117.30| 293,237.59] 113.80] 284,506.05 1.6%
17JAN25 144A FRN
HEXAGON REINSU 7.5
12 2025/1/17] 2,500 | 117.30| 293,237.59| 113.79] 284,466.97, 1.6%
17JAN25 144A FRN
BLUE HALO RE L 0.0
13 2026/6/29| 2,500 | 100.00| 250,000.00] 106.36] 265,900.00] 1.5%
[29JUN26 144A FRN
ATLAS CAP UK 12.25088
14 2026/6/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 104.90] 262,259.38 1.5%
08JUN26 144A
SUTTER RE LTD 0.0
15 2027/5/241 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 103.45 258,621.88 1.5%
[24MAY27 144A FRN
NORTHSHORE RE 0.0
16 2026/7/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 103.26] 258,143.75 1.5%
07JUL26 144A FRN
ISUSSEX CAP UK 0.0
17 2028/1/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 103.24] 258,109.38 1.5%
08JAN28 144A FRN
NORTHSHORE RE 0.0
18 2027/1/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 103.01 257,515.63 1.5%
08JAN27 144A FRN
SANDERS RE 11 0.0
19 2026/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 102.99 257,468.75 1.5%
07JUN26 144A FRN
MERNA RE 11 LT 0.0
20 2028/7/10] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 102.86] 257,156.25 1.5%
10JUL28 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 11 0.0
21 2028/4/21] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 102.68] 256,693.75 1.5%
21APR28 144A FRN
HERBIE RE LTD 0.0
22 2025/1/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 102.57| 256,412.50 1.5%
08JAN25 144A FRN
INTEGRITY RE 5.24129
23 2028/6/12] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 102.43] 256,081.25 1.5%
12JUN28 144A F
URSA RE 11 LTD 0.0
24 2027/12/7] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 102.33] 255,821.88 1.5%
07DEC27 144A FRN
ALAMO RE LTD 0.0
25 2028/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 102.21] 255,534.38 1.5%
07JUN28 144A FRN
FIRST COAST RE 0.0
26 2027/6/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 101.96] 254,900.00 1

07JUN27 144A FRN

.Sﬂ
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MONA LISA RE L 0.0

27 2028/7/10] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 101.81 254,512.50] 1.5%
10JUL28 144A FRN
BOWLINE RE LTD 0.0

28 2023/3/20] 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00] 101.61] 254,012.50] 1.5%
[20MAR23 144A FRN
BONANZA RE LTD 0.0

29 2024/12/23| 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 101.44] 253,603.13 1.5%
[23DEC24 144A FRN
INORTHSHORE R 8.09375

30 2022/7/8 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 101.41 253,512.50 1.5%
08JUL22 144A F 1

2021 12

2021 12
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2021
2021 12
2018 32,797,257.03 3,772,340.50 9.98 1,148
2019 23,355,259.10 2,686,321.90 10.07 1,158
2020 11,052,438.52 1,271,251.48 10.41 1,197
2021 8,307,058.10 955,477.82 10.56 1,215
2021 8,639,370.62 993,700.41 10.32 1,187
2021 8,598,929.43 989,048.86 10.22 1,176
2021 8,448,811.23 971,782.27 10.34 1,189
2021 8,499,124 .31 977,569.28 10.40 1,196
2021 8,221,619.62 945,650.69 10.45 1,202
2021 8,279,113.13 952,263.59 10.52 1,210
2021 8,286,825.77 953,150.70 10.53 1,211
2021 8,307,058.10 955,477.82 10.56 1,215
2021 7,968,813.11 916,572.88 10.40 1,196
2021 10 8,005,367.69 920,777.39 10.45 1,202
2021 11 8,040,605.28 924,830.42 10.49 1,207
2021 12 8,075,094.72 928,797.39 10.54 1,212

46/211



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2,674,545,379 9,780
2019 2,119,499,313 9,626
2020 1,807,585,704 9,825
2021 1,174,108,653 10,158
2021 1,513,204,937 9,941
2021 1,412,916,634 9,840
2021 1,298,678,755 9,959
2021 1,282,317,356 10,016
2021 1,257,311,749 10,055
2021 1,206,403,930 10,128
2021 1,171,449,045 10,135
2021 1,174,108,653 10,158
2021 1,134,363,514 9,998
2021 10 1,139,191,803 10,040
2021 11 1,118,635,398 10,084
2021 12 1,070,623,046 10,114
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2017 28 2021 10

2018

2018 10 0.05 5.75 20

2019 0.02 2.30

2019 10 0.01 1.15

2020 0.04 4.60

2020 10 0.30 34.51 80

2021

2021 10 0.20 23.00 200
2017 28 2021 10 0.62 71.31 300
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2017 28 2021
2017 28 2018 0.20 2.20
1.60 1.37
2018 2019
3.87 2.07
2019 2020
4.32 4.20
2020 2021
100x +
2017 28 2017 12 29 2.70 2.94
2018 2018 12 31 2.57 0.29
2019 2019 12 31 4.43 1.40
2020 2020 12 31 3.00 2.25
2021 2021 12 31 4.17 3.84

100x% +

2017
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— SPEMAAEREH (M)

s HIWE ?MEE HHB‘E HHB" ?ﬁ.‘-":tE ?{I?':rli ?“?IE 1"\1?15
SRS IR SRS JRSE 9RNE IANE 4R30E HIE HNE

HEEE SR RCEAOGEE LSS ESr E LN eDALTHESNTLE T L FRLTET.

R EHDE 7
<TKRIL(EFE2E) IS5 A> <H(F2E) TS A>
6% 2 ; &%,
L 4.1
A% - 2,.';'!? u 3":':' e A% - 2 P
% 1 I_] I I 2% 1.40 I I
0% 0% S ﬂ
=029
2% | -2% |
e 2.7 gyl =294
2017 20185% 20195 2NTE 20185
{0 WH’-—- AHBEIER~ \{MHIH"H fEE:i! Hi E}{JJ} EIH F APESHE~ I‘B:IHEE'-FI- n !E.IFIEI» }{;m‘ﬁ E‘“‘\."ma"‘mﬂ B
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a=EE O A DN e A R S S
b=l AR SRR | DS DS E RS
ZOTTECHRS, SEARIE | ::‘?ﬁi’.':-‘:'f‘i!f.‘i"'f?fﬁ
2017 28 2021 31
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
2017 28
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
2018 31
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
2018 79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
2019 31
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
17,869.393 1,281,074.577 1,056,755.478
oo (17,869.393) | (1,281,074.577) | (1,056,755.478)
0 37,125.626 183,065.051
2020 31
0 (37,125.626) (183,065.051)
9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
2020 9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
2021 31
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
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2163 12
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CAT
2021 31
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
usb usb
625,113 71,900 2,594,387 298,406
2021 Usb 19,907,356
2020 USD 28,179,917 18,225,145 2,096,256 25,485,864 2,931,384
46,328 5,329 1,110 128
183,688 21,128 255,558 29,394
3,343 385 3,333 383
19,083,617 2,194,998 28,340,252 3,259,696
7,722 888 127,504 14,666
81,520 9,376 114,850 13,210
89,242 10,265 242,354 27,876
18,994,375 2,184,733 28,097,898 3,231,820
usb usb
JPY 1,174,108,653 1,807,585,704
usb 10,687,317 17,045,459
UsD 8,307,058 955,477,811 11,052,439  1,271,251,534
115,580 183,065,051
786,899 1,056,755,478
usb usb
JPY 10,158 9,874
usD 11 1,265 10 1,150
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CAT
2021 31
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
UsD usD
FVTPL
1
6 1,372,337 157,846 2,503,825 287,990
6 6,623 762 (201,734) (23,203)
6 109,741 12,622 (585,373) (67,330)
1,488,701 171,230 1,716,718 197,457
6 97 11 2,891 333
2 (555,917) (63,942) 161,597 18,587
932,881 107,300 1,881,206 216,376
5 1 67 8
8 151,499 17,425 238,888 27,477
73,736 8,481 73,807 8,489
8 9,990 1,149 10,010 1,151
13,640 1,569 13,513 1,554
8 25,977 2,988 40,948 4,710
127,398 14,653 204,958 23,574
10,823 1,245 17,080 1,965
149,292 17,172 128,847 14,820
562,360 64,683 728,118 83,748
370,521 42,617 1,153,088 132,628
429,714 49,426 76,818 8,836
(59,193) (6,808) 1,076,270 123,793
@
FVTPL
@

70/211



2021

2019

2020

2021

31

31

31

31

71/211

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT
2021 31
usD
43,328,553 4,983,650
179,945 20,697
(16,486,870) (1,896,320)
1,076,270 123,793
28,007,898 3,231,820
100,000 11,502
(9,144,330) (1,051,781)
(59,193) (6,808)
18,994,375 2,184,733
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CAT
2021 31
31
2021 2020 31
usD usD

(59,193) (6,808) 1,076,270 123,793
(6,773,742) (779,116) (3.523,901) (405,319)
14,041,084 1,615,005 18,015,725 2,072,169
1,005,218 115,620 818,370 94,129
(1,011,841) (116,382) (616,636) (70,925)
(165,000) (18,978) 591,883 68,078
1,993,000 229,235
(10) @ 49,394 5,681
(33,330) (3.834) (14,475) (1,665)
71,870 8,266 155,810 17,921
7,075,056 813,773 18,545,440 2,133,097
100,000 11,502 179,945 20,697
(9,144,330) (1,051,781)  (16,486,870) (1,896,320)
(9,044,330) (1,040,279)  (16,306,925) (1,875,623)
(1,969,274) (226,506) 2,238,515 257,474
2,594,387 298,406 355,872 40,932
625,113 71,900 2,594,387 298,406
1,420,715 163,411 2,659,635 305,911
®) (€] (67 ®
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CAT
2021 31
CAT
2013 12 74 2013 12
2017 15 2017 28
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
CAT
CAT
CAT CAT

CAT CAT

NDF

26

USA
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IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 10 IFRS 12
2017 15

usb
usD
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CAT
2021 31
IAS 27 2012
usD
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CAT

2021 31

2020

IFRS

FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1
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CAT

2021 31

FVTPL

SPPI

FVPL
FVPL

FVPL

SPP1

SPPI
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CAT

2021 31
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CAT

2021 31



CAT

Inc. Willis Towers Watson Securities

IFRS

2021 31 ECL

2018 IFRS

CAT
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CAT

2021 31

Swiss Re Capital Markets Aon Securities
GC Securities CAT
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CAT

2021 31



FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

IAS 32
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CAT

2021 31

FVTPL



CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT
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CAT

2021 31

50



CAT

CAT
CAT

SPV

usD

JPY

CAT

CAT
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CAT
2021 31
CAT
CAT
SPV
usb
JPY

CAT



CAT

31

2021 31
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CAT
2021 31
CAT
2021 31 2020
usD
1,016,640 5.58
891,051 4.89
14,069,868 77.20
1,491,874 8.18
502,800 2.76
252,912 1.39

18,225,145 100.00
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CAT
2021 31
2020 31

usD
736,528 2.89
1,187,138 4.66
17,498,924 68.66
4,341,483 17.03
483,713 1.90
1,238,078 4.86
25,485,864 100.00

CAT
CAT
2021 31

usD
10,702,301 58.72
3,604,446 19.78
486,978 2.67
990,691 5.44
2,191,648 12.02
249,081 1.37

18,225,145 100.00
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CAT
2021 31
2020 31
usD
17,454,170 68.49
3,041,201 11.93
971,603 3.81
1,196,609 4.70
2,584,156 10.14
238,125 0.93
25,485,864 100.00
CAT
CAT
10
35
VaR
2021 31 1 VaR 6,112,647 2020
10,060,612 100
CAT
CAT
2021 31

10 35 2020
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CAT
2021 31
2021 31

usD usD usD usD usD usD
10,873,737 7,351,408 18,225,145
46,328 46,328
183,688 183,688
3,343 3,343
625,113 625,113
11,498,850 7,351,408 233,359 19,083,617
7,722 7,722
81,520 81,520
89,242 89,242
11,498,850 7,351,408 144,117 18,994,375

2020 31

usD usD usb usb usb usD
13,467,090 12,018,774 25,485,864
1,110 1,110
255,558 255,558
3,333 3,333
2,594,387 2,594,387
16,061,477 12,018,774 260,001 28,340,252
127,504 127,504
114,850 114,850
242,354 242,354
16,061,477 12,018,774 17,647 28,097,898
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2020

2021

bps

31

31

31
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CAT
2021 31
25
25 bps 25 bps
usD usD
(456) 456
25 bps 25 bps
usD usD
(6,371) 6,371

0.1 2020 0.1
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CAT
2021 31
2021 31
2020 31

JPY EUR
2021 31 USD USD USD
2,565 4,207 6,772
1,189,107 1,189,107
9,450 9,450
2,565 1,202,764 1,205,329
10,668,857 (1,195,106) 9,473,751
10,671,422 7,658 10,679,080

JPY EUR
2020 31 USD usD usD
74,039 36,274 110,313
1,486,985 1,486,985
10,442 10,442
74,039 1,533,701 1,607,740
16,947,645 (1,523,729) 15,423,916
17,021,684 9,972 17,031,656
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CAT

2021 31

2021 31
10,679,080 2020 17,031,656 2021 31

533,954 2020 851,583

CAT

CAT
CAT

91/211



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31
usD
625,113 Al
18,225,145 Al
46,328 Al
2020 31
usD
2,594,387 Al
25,485,864 Al

1,110 Al
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CAT

2021 31

2163 12

2022 10,000,000

2020

2021 31
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CAT

2021 31

31 2020 31

usb USD usb USD
18,225,145 18,225,145
46,328 46,328
18,271,473 18,271,473
(7,722) (7,722)

(7,722) (7,722)
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CAT
2021 31
UsD UsD UsD UsD
25,485,864 25,485,864
1,110 1,110
25,486,974 25,486,974
(127,504) (127,504)
(127,504) (127,504)
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT

CAT
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2020

2020

2021

11

11

31

31

31
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CAT

2021 31
UsD UsD USD
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
usD usD USD
1,110 (127,504) (126,394)
1,110 (127,504) (126,394)
UsD UsD
46,328 1,171,670,000

(7,722) (1,281,000)
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2021

2021

31

31

31
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CAT
2021 31
USD usD
1,110 17,242,852
(127,504) (1,692,542)
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
46,328 (7,722) 38,606
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CAT

2021 31

(7,722) 7,722
(7,722) 7,722
31
1,110 (1,110)
1,110 (1,110)
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CAT
2021 31
(127,504) 1,110 (126,394)
(127,504) 1,110 (126,394)
2021 31 2020 31
usD usD
1,372,337 2,506,716
(1,005,218) (818,370)
1,011,841 616,636
(55,259) 6,510
165,000 (591,883)
1,488,701 1,719,609
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2020

2021

2019

2020

0.01

31

31

31

31
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CAT
2021 31
183,065.051 1,056,755.478
9,699.321
(67,484.648) (279,555.875)
115,580.403 786,898.924
220,190.677 2,319,960.662
17,869.393
(37,125.626) (1,281,074.577)
183,065.051 1,056,755.478
10,000
100,000
1,000
10,000,000 1
10.00 10,000
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CAT

2021 31



2021 31
2020 76,818
0.12
40,948
5,959

5,000
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CAT
2021 31
429,714
25,977 2020
3,883 2020



2021

0.70
151,499
22,653
108,214 2020 170,634
16,181 2020 24,828
31 2021 12 21
638,256

2020
2020

0.50

356,619

104/211

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT

2021 31

238,888
34,759

10,000

2021 12 21



Statement of financial position
August 31, 2021

Assels
Cash
Investment in debt instruments, at fair value

{cost: 2021: USD19,907 356, 2020: USD28,179.217) 4.5.7

Derivative financial instrurments, at fair value 4.5
Interest receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value 4.5
Accrued expenses 8
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to

the holders of redeemable units)

Met asseis atiributable to the holders of redeemable
units

et assels attributable to:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class amts (JPY)
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (L1500
S0 Semi-Annual Digtnbution Class units (US0)

Units outstanding:
JPY Semi- Annual Distribution Class units
S0 Semi-Annoal Distribution Class units

Met assel value per unit;
IPY Semi- Annual Distribution Class units (JPY)
USD Semi-Annual Disgribution Class units (USD)

EDINETOOOO
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Tokie Marine CAT Bond Fund
Fimanciol vto teimemiy
cAugrexs 31, 2020

August 31, 2021

Augunst 2, 2020

UsD UsD
625,113 2,594,387
18,225,145 25 485,864
46,328 L1l
183,688 255,558
3343 3,333
19,083,617 28.340,252
7,712 127,504
81,520 114,850
89,242 242,354
18,994,375 18,097,808
1,174, 108,653 1,807,585,704
10,687,317 17,045,459
8,307,058 11,052,439
115,580 183,065,051
786,899 1,056,755.478
10,158 D874

11 10

The accomparving notes form an integral pavt of these financial statements.
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Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund
Financial statemsinty
Amgress 11, 2021
Statement of comprehensive income
For the vear ended August 31, 2021
For the year For the year
ended ended
August 31, 2021 August 31, 2020
MNote UsD UsD
Revenue
et income/loss from financial indruments at FVTPL
Interest income 6 1,372,337 2,503,825
Wet gain/({loss) on investments in debt instruments [ 6,623 {201,734)
Met gain/(lozs) on currency forwards derivatives & 109,741 {585,373)
1,488,701 1,716,718
Interest on cash [ 97 2,891
Met c!{chan%: {loss)/gain on foreign cumrency
Iransactions (5559 T) 161,597
Total revenue 932 881 1,881,206
Interest expense 5 67
Investment Manager fees 8 151,499 218888
Administration fees 73,736 T3.807
Trustee fees 3 9950 10,010
Custodian fees 13,640 13,513
Fee Agent fees 8 15,977 40,948
Distributor fees 127,398 204,958
Agent member company fees 10,823 17,080
Other fees 149,292 128,347
Total operating expenses 562,360 718118
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units before distributions 370,521 1.153.088
Distributions to holders of redeemable units to the
holders of redeemable units 429,714 76,818
Changes in net assets atiributable to the holders of
redeemable units alter distributions (50,193} 1076270

) This relates to net tncomedloss from financial tmstruments measured at FVTPL including realized and
unreahised gainslossesr on financial arsets at fair value through profit and loss (net loss on
invesimants i debt pratruments and nat gain on derivalives), and ilerest (Rcome,

' This relalez o realised and unrealised gainfoss on foreign currencies, spot foreign exchange

contracts and receivablesipayables denonunated in forelgn currencies,

The accomparving notes form an integral pavt of these financial statements. 5
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Tokio Marine CAT Bond Find
Fimanciol vto teimemiy

Auguest 11, 2021

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of

redeemable units
For the vear ended August 31, 2021

Mote Total
UsD
Balance at August 31, 2019 43,328,553
Iszue of units [ 79,945
Repurchase of units (16.436,870)
Change in net assels attributable to the holders of
redeemable units 1.076.270
Balance at August 31, 2020 28,097 898
lsaie of units 100,000
Repurchase of units (9,144.3307
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redecmable units (59,193)
Balance at Angust 31, 2021 18994375
The accomparving notes fornt an integral part of these financial statements. &
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Statement of cash Mows
For the year ended August 31, 2021

For the year

Auguest 11, 2021

For the year

ended ended
August 31, 2021 August 31, 2020
USD USD
Operating activities
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units after
distribution {59,193) 1,076,270
Purchase of debt instruments (6,773.747) (3,523,901
Proceeds from sale of debt indruments 14,041,084 18,015,725
Adjustment for items not involving cash:
Realised loss on debt indruments 1,005 218 218370
Unrealised {gain)/ loss on debt instruments (1,011,341) (616.636)
Wet unrealised loss' (zaind on derivatives {165,000) 501 883
Met changes in non-cash operating balances;
Unsettled trades receivable . 1,993,000
Other assets {10} 49 394
Accrued expenses {33,330} (14,475)
Intered receivable 71,870 155,810
MNet cash Mows generated from operating activities 7.075.056 18.545.440
Financing activities
Proceeds from units isaued 100, (00 179,945
Payment due to repurchase of units (9,144,330) (16.486.870)
Cash Nows (used in) Mnancing activities (9, 044,330) (16.306,925)
Met increase’ (decrease) in cash (1,969.274) 2,238 515
Cash at beginning of the vear 2,594 387 355872
Cash at end of the vear 625,113 2,594 387
Supplementary information on cash Mows from operating activities
Interest received 1. 420,715 2659635
Interest paid (5} (67

The accompanying netes form an inmtegral pat of these financial statemernts.
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cAmgrest 11, 2021
Notes to financial statements

1 Domicile and activities

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trug™} is a series-trust of Credit Suisse Universal
Trust {Cavman) I {the “Trust™). The Trust is an exempted unit trug regigered under Section 74
of the Trust Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013 and registercd under the Mutual
Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013, The Series Trust was established on
August 15, 2017 and commenced operations on Seplember 28, 2017, The address of its registered
office is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek to provide investors with income gains
threugh inveding mainly in catastrophe bonds CCAT Bonds™). In addition, the Series Trust can
invest in insurance linked securities other than CAT Bonds, insurance derivatives linked bonds
and cash and money market securities {together with CAT Bonds, the “debt instruments™). CAT
Bonds are debt instruments that transfer the risk of catastrophic events from entities such as
insurance companies, reinsurance companies. corporalions and govemments 1o the capital
markets, Investors receive 4 risk premium in the form of a vield in exchange for bearing the risk
of losses from pre-defined natural and non-natural catastrophic events, such as eanthquakes,
windstorms, mortality and other catastrophe related events. The principal amount of any given
CAT Bond will be potentially reduced (and subject to partial or, in some cases, total loss) upon
the ocaurence of an event o which the CAT Bond is contractually linked.

It is expected thal the assets of the Series Trust will mainly be denominated in (but not limited to}
currencies such as US Dollars and Euro. Where practicable, the Investment Manager seeks to
hedge the currency exposure of assels attributable to a Class and denominated in aurencies other
than the anrency of denomination of that Class with the currency of denomination of that Class.
The Investment Manager generally can use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange contracls
and non-deliverable forwards (including cross forward foreizn exchange contracts) (together, the
“Currency Forwards™) in order 1o altempd to hedge against comency fuctuations.

The Series Trust has 2 classes of units: USD Semi-Annual Disribution Class Units (denominated
in US Daollar), and JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units {denominated in Japanese Yen)
{each a*Class”™), as defined in Appendix 26 of the Offering Memorandum refating to the Trust,

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited, 3 company incorporated under the Companies
Law {as amended) of the Cayman Islands, has been appointed as the Trust’s manager, (the
“Manager”™} under the Trust Deed. The Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the
Trust and has the power Lo isse units in different classes and/or series and 1o repurchase units.
The Manager has delegated all the rights, obligations, privileges, powers, duties, trusts and
discretions vested in the Manager by the termms of the Trost Deed with respect to the investment,
management and re-investment of the assets of the Series Trust and responsibility for the
discretionary day-to-day investment decision-making over the portfolio of debt instruments (the
"Sub-Advised Portfolio”) and the management of the Currency Forwards to Tokio Marine Assel
Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™). The Imvestment Manager has in tum
delegated responsibility for the day-to-day investment decision making over the Sub-Advised
Portfolio to Tokio Marine Asset Management (USA), Ltd., {the “Sub-Investment Manager™).
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cAuguess 31, 2021

Notes to financial statements (continued)

1 Domicile and activities (continued)

Credit Suisse International (the “Fee Agent™) is responsible for paying certain ongoing and
operational costs and expenses of the Series Trust, including manager fee, auditing costs that are
not included in the audit fees and expense, annual fees payable in resped of the Series Trust or
the Series Trusl to government bodies and agencies, and insurance cods (if any) {the *Crdinary
Costs™},

The Series Trust’s trustee is Elian Trudee (Cayvman) Limited (the “Trudee™) and administrator is
The Bank of New York Mellon, Singapore Branch (the * Administrator™).

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units unless otherwise stated,

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS").

fa) Besis of measurement

The financial satements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured a1 fair value.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities { Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and [AS
273 (2012 (the amendments) with a date of initial application of August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment), Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
invedment entity.

(b Funciional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States
Dollar (*USD™) which reflects the fact that the Series Trust's operations, reporting lo
unitholder as well as settlement of the majority of fees and expenses are camied out in USD.

‘) Uve of extimates and judgeiments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trust's
maznagzement to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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Awgrest 11, 2001

Notes to linancial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

o) Use efestinates and fudgements feontinned)
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judzements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogni sed
in the financial statements are described in Notes 4 and 5,

(] New standards and interpretations not vel adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to gandards are effective for annual periods
beginning after Septanber 1, 2020 and carlier application is permitted; however, the Series
Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial statements.

3 Significant accounting policies

The =significant accounting policies set out below have been applicd consistently by the Series
Trust.

fal Financial assets and financial Babilities
(i} Recognition
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially
on the trade date at which the Trust becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date they are

originated.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the partics has performed or the
contract is @ derivative contract not exempted from the scope of [IFRS 9.,

(i} Classification
Classification of financial assets
O initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets s measured al amortised
cod or FVTPL. A financial assel is measured al amortised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash Nows, and,

i) Is contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
represent payments of principal and interest {SPPI).
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cAuguess 31, 2021
Notes to linancial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
‘el Financial assets and financial labilities {eontinued)
(i} Classification (continned)
Classification of financial assels (continued)

All other financial assets of the Scries Trust are measured at FVTPL. A financial assct is
measured at Fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP@) on the principal amount outstanding;

i} It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both colled contractual cash flows and sell;

iii} Al initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing
5o eliminates or significantly reduces a measuremenl or recognilion inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the contraciual cash flows are SPPL the Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Seres
Trust considers:

= comtingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash Mows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g, nen-recourse
features), and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (eg, periodical reset of
interes ratesh.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:
= Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, interest receivable, unsettled trades

recervable and other assets, These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.
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Amguest 31, 2021
Notes to linancial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Finaneial assets and financial labifities feontinnued)
(i} Classification (continned)
Classification af financial assets (continied)

- Other business model: this indudes investment in debt instruments and derivative
financial indruments, These financial assets are managed and their performance is
evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset
is held, the Series Trust censiders all of the relevant information about how the business
is managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular intérest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
MANAEEMEnt:

the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

i

how the investment manager 15 compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contracteal cash fows colleded: and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Fund's
continuing recognition of the assets,

The Series Trust classified financial assets into the following categories:

- Financial assets designated at FVTPL
o Investment in debl instruments
o Denvative financial instruments

- Financial assets at amotised cost
o Cash, interest receivable and other assets. These are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or detemminable payments that are not quoted in the curent
miarket.
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cAwguess 31, 2021

Notes to linancial statements (continued)

3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Finavetal asvets and financial labilities (econtinued)
(i} Classification (confinned)
Classification of financial labilities
The Series Trust classified financial liabilities into the following categories;

- Financial liabilities at held-for-trading
o Denvative financial instruments

= Fuancial habilities at amortised cost
o Accrued expenses

it} Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are measured
initially at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, Financial assets and financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction codts that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Subsequent Lo initial recognition, all financial assels and financial liabilities classified at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in their fair value
recognised in the datement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impaimment losses,
if any. This is considered Lo approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate
nature of these ingruments,

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted
prices in an active market for that ingrument. A market is regarded as active if guoted
prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not
active, the Series Trust establishes fair value using a valuation technique agreed by the
Trustee. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same and other pricing models. Altematively the
fair value may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies)
of indicative prices from bond'debt market makers. Broker quotes as obtained from the
pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding. The Series Trust would
exercise judgment and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Finavetal assets and financial labilities (continued)
{iii} Measrement {continued)

Realised gains or losses on sale of debt indruments are calculated using the weighted
average cost method. The unrealised gains or losses represent the difference between the
carrving amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period or
transaction price when purchased and s carrving amount at the end of the period.
Realised and unrealised gains or losses on investments are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income.

{iv} Tvestment in debt instramenis

The Series Trust holds investments in CAT Bonds whose prices are govemed by a
specific pricing methodology following the Series Trust's offering documents, The CAT
Bonds® valuation is based solely on the prices received from 4 brokers: Swiss Re Capital
Markets, Aon Securities Inc., Willis Towers Watson Securities and GO Securities. The
CAT Bonds" price is calculated based on the available brokers” average mid-price, which
is derived by averaging their bid and ask prices. In the case where the total divergence of
average ask price and average bid price against average mid-price equals or exceeds 5%,
auch bond will be valued using the average bid price.

f"b;l Tivestment in derivative ﬁrm:x:f.pf frstrummend s

The Series Trust holds investments in derivative financial instruments in the form of
currency forward contracts. The fair value of the currency forward contracts 15 the
exchange difference between the contract rate and the applicable forward rate.

{vi) Impaivment

IFES 9 requires the Series Trust to recognise loss allowances for ECL on financial assds
measured at amortised cost.

As gt Augost 31, 2021, the Series Trust held cash, interest receivable, unsettled trade
receivable and other assets as financial assels measured at amortised cost, which is not
under the scope of ECL model. Hence, the applicable of IFRS %5 impairment
requirement at September 1. 2012 has no significant impact on the Series Trust's
financial statements.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

{a) Finaneial assets and finanecial labifities (eontinnued)
(wii} Derecogmition

The Sertes Trust derccognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial assel expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition in accordance with the requirements of [FRS 9.

The Series Trust derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

iy Cash

Cash comprise amoints with eriginal maturities of three months or less deposited into current
accounts held at an international financial institution.

(ol Offserting financial instrunents
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legal right to set
oft the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultameonsly. The format adopted in these financial statements is o
present the gross amounts of the financial assets and financial labilities in the statement of

financial position, while the offsetting and net amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented under Note 5 — Offsetting financial asveis and financial liabilities.

(il Unseitled trades receivable

Unsettled trades receivable represent amounts receivable for investments sold but not yet
settled on the statement of financial position date.

‘el Expenses

All operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an
accrual basis,

i) Interest on cash

Interest on cash is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest
method,
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Neit incomeloss fiom financial insiruments af FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes net loss on investments in debt
ingruments, net gain on derivative financial instruments and interest income, which are
disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income. Net realised gain or loss from
financial instraments at FVTPL is caleulated using the weighted average cost method.

Met loss on investments in debt instruments comprises of all realised and unrealised fair value
changes. The realised gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the
difference between the cost of a financial instnuments and its settlement price of the sale trade.

The unrealised gain or loss represents the difference between the carying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased
in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in Foreign currencies are translated
into US Dollar amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollar amounts
on the respective dates of such transactions.

Feported net realised foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments and from other transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are included in the net gain or loss on investments and net exchange gain or loss on foreign
currency transactions, respedtively, in the statement of comprehensive income.

(h Neit asseis attribuiable to the holders of redeemable wniis

The Trustee dands possessed of the assets of the Series Trust inoa trus fund for the Series
Trust's unitholders subject to the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Appendix. The
Series Trust classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity
ingtruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. The
Series Trugt has two classes of redeemable unils in issue. These are the most subordinate
classes of financial instruments of the Series Trust and the units rank pari passu in all material
respects. The two classes have identical terms and conditions other than anrency of
denomination, the portfolio assets, distribution rates and minimum issue size. The redeemable
units provide the unitholders with the right to require repurchase for cash at a value
proportionate to the unitholders’ share in the Series Trust's net assets at each repurchase date
and also in the event of the Series Trust's liquidation,

Due to the differing features of each class of financial instument, the Series Trust's
redeemable unils are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32, This
liability is measured at the amount which the Series Trug is obligated 1o pay upon repurchase,
which is based on the trading net asset value caleulated in accordance with the Series Trust's
offering documents.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i} Net asset value per unit

The net asset value per unit is caleulated in accordance with the Master Trust Deed by
dividing the Series Trust’s nel assets attributable to the holders of the redeemable units in
each class by the number of outstanding units in each class.

i Tavation

The Series Trud is exempt from paying taxes on its income, profits or capital gain in the
Cayman Islands. The Trust has received an undertaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the
Cayman [slands exempting it from all local income, profit and capital taxes for a period of 50
years from the date of establishment of the Trust. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
is included in these financial statements.

i) Distributions

Distributions made 1o gualifying unitholders are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

4 Financial risk management

The Series Trust's investment portfolio comprises of investment in CAT Bonds, other insurance
linked securities and Currency Forwards. The Series Trust's imvesting activities expose it to
varions types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it
invests, The most important tvpes of Anancial nsks to which the Series Trust are exposed Lo are
market risk, credil nsk and Liquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments
outstanding at the statement of financial position date and the risk management policies employed
by the Series Trust are discussed below:

() Mearket risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gaings and includes price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk.

The Series Trust's drategy on the managanent of investment sk is driven by its investment
objective and investment restrictions stated out in its offering documents. The Series Trust
seeks to provide investors with income gains through investing mainly in CAT Bonds
amongs other insurance linked sccurities. In selecting the Series Trust's portfolio of
investments, the Sub-Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

s [tz analysis of CAT Bonds and the related markets {including, without limitation, the
trend of CAT Bonds, the reinsurance market and invesiment trends in that sector);

# The nisk characterization {including, without limitation, earthquake and hurricane) of
each CAT Bond; and
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)

(el Merker visk foomtinmed)
s The region and spread level of each CAT Bond,

In addition to the above factors, the Sub-Investment Manager, as far as possible, manages the
debt instruments so as not to invest in CAT Bonds having Japanese relevant risk.

The Sub-Investment Manager seeks to diversify the type of perils or the geographical focus
of the CAT Bonds it invests in for the account of the Series Trud taking into account the type
of perils and/or the geographical focus of overall market of the CAT Bonds. The CAT Bonds
to which the Series Trust may gain exposure through direct investment are generally
unleveraged structured notes which are issued by special purpose vehicles ("SPV™). The
relevant SPV assumes the risk of occurrence of defined events and fully funds its exposure to
such risks through the issue of CAT Bonds to collateralize and directly pass on the risk
generated from entering into risk transfer contracts with a sponsor,

The Investment Manager seeks to hedge foreign exchange rate risk for Unitholders by
entering inte the following Currency Forwards:

« In refation to the USD Semi-Annual Dastribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units®
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between USD (in which the USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than USD,

¢ In relation to the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements 3 strategy designed to hedge the JPY Semi-Annwal Distribution Class Unils®
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between JPY (in which the JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than JPY.

The Sub-Invesdment Mmager tracks the difference of the CAT Bonds™ nisk characteristics
against a reference index on a monthly basis. The benchmark index that the Sub-Investment
Manager uses is Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Performance Index Total Return,

The Sub-Investment Manager manages the investments of the Series Trust in accordance with
the mvestment objectives and strategies of the Series Trust, making sure that necessary and
econemically rational steps are taken to prevent the Series Trust's assets from being used or
invested in vielation of the investment restrictions of the Series Trust. The Investment
Manager carries out investment management activities in accordance with internally prepared
and periodically updated investment guidelines. The Manager advises the Trustee of any
investment management decisions or other investment management adivities required as a
result of ocourrences or circumstances outside of the erdinary course of business.
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Price risk is the risk that the valee of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual invesgment or its
issuer or fadtors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the Series Trust’s investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions
will directly affect the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable unils and
change in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units.

The Series Trust's investments, which are mainly CAT Bonds, are issued as floating rate
securities, in which the investor receives a set coupon spread over an index {or refum on
high-quality collateral, which is typically invested in short-tenm money markel finds).
The index {or collateral retum) resets periodically based on the prevailing short-term
interest rates. CAT Bonds® price is inversely related to the spread achieved by investors,

which is a fimetion of modelled expected loss and other market factors, such as peril zone,

perceptions of risk, market trends, economic urmoil, elc.

The following table sets out the concentration of debt instruments held by the Series
Trust as at Augus 31, 2021 and August 31, 2020,

August 31, 2021
Market value o Holdings

VS

Country*

United Kingdom 1,016,640 5.58
Ireland 891,051 4.89
Bermuda 14,069 368 77.20
Cayman Islands 1,491,874 8.18
Singapore 502,800 .76
Cither 252912 1.29
Total 18225145 10k, (0

W The country elassifieation is based on cowntry of incorporation,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)

Ve Marker risk feomtinued)

{i} Price risk

August 31, 2020

Market value %o Holdings
ush

Country*

United Kingdom 736,528 2.89
Ireland 1,187,138 4,66
Bermuda 17,498,524 G866
Cayman Islands 4,341,483 17.03
Singapore 483,713 1.90
Other 1,238,078 4.86
Total 25,485,864 1 (0, 0D

*The conniry classification ix based on conntry of incorparation.

In general, there is a concentration of specific catastrophe risks in specific regions such as
hurricanes in the United States, which represents a high portion of the overall risk of
CAT Bonds, Therefore, in the case of occurence of these events, the price of these CAT
Bonds may significant]ly decrease and the Series Trust may sigmificantly incur losses.

The Series Trust's investments are concentrated in the following perils:

August 31, 2021

Market value % Holdings
UsD

Peril
Mu lti-peril 10,702,301 58.72
Earthgquake 3,604,446 19.78
Flood 486,978 2.67
Pandemic 590,691 544
Wind 2,191,648 12.02
Wildfire 249,081 1.37
Total 18,225,145 100, 00
20
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)

(el Merker visk foomtinmed)

{i} Price risk {continned)

August 31, 2020

Market value %o Holdings

UsD

Peril
Mu IH-pen] 17,454,170 68.49
Earthauake 3,041,201 11.93
Flood 971,603 3.8
Pandemic 1,196,609 4.70
Wind 2,584,156 10.14
Wildfire 238,125 0.93
Total 25,485,804 L0 0

The Series Trust mainly invests in CAT Bonds in accordance with the investment policy
of the Series Trust. The risk management framework that the Sub-Investment Manager
applies Lo the Series Trust consists of three risk monitoring activities, which are (13 Daily
monitoring of any single CAT Bond’s weightage not to exceed 10%% of the latest net asset
value of the Series Trust; (2) Daily monitoring of any single bond issuer's weightage not
to exceed 35% of the latest net asset value of the Series Trust; and (3) Monthly
caleulation of 1% annual Value at Risk indicator (VaR.),

As al August 31, 2021, the 1% annual VaR of the Series Trust is USS 6,112,647 {2020:
USS 10,060,612}, which represents the maximum loss at occurrence probability once
every 100 years,

In recenl years, a concentralion of sponsors (such as insurance companies and
counterparties of re-insurance contracts) and issuers has developed in the CAT Bond, As
a result of such concentrated exposure, the Series Trust may incur greater losses than a
diversified fund which invests in a wider range of sectors and issuers as well as a resull of
entire or partial losses of the principal of the CAT Bonds due to the occurrence of natural
catastrophes.

Mo debt instrument and issuer exceeded 10% mnd 35% respectively of the net assels
attributable to the holders of redeemable units at August 31, 2021 (2020: nil),

21
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)
(el Merker visk foomtinmed)
(i} Imterest rafe visi

The Series Trust's intered-bearing financial assets and liabilities expose it to risks
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on its financial position and eash flows. In general, the interest rate risk of fixed income
securilies is higher than floating income securities. Therefore, the value of fixed income
securities will be more subject to decline than that of floating income securities because
of rise of interest rates.  As nominal interest rates rise, the value of the Series Trust is
likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate,

Fixed income securities and floating income securities with longer durations tend to be
more sensitive to changes in interest rates, nsually making them more volatile than
securities with shorer durations.

In general, CAT Bonds are usually issued as floating income securities, which are less
sensitive Lo changes in interest rates, as the coupon is partially linked to changes in the
interest rate. However, the residual matwritics of the underlying money market
instriemients generally canse some minor interest rate risk,
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
(el AMerker visk foomtinued)
(i} Interest vate risk (comtinned)
Lams than Mone than Mot
g 51, 2021 Lmemth -1 vear L-3 vy & yeagy braring Total
Usn usn LS LEL1] usn LEE>1]
Aoty
Ervweestrs enit uny it 10.ET3,737 1751 408 18,225, 145
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walue
Drempvotve Bnangial 46,738 44,328
snsbnanents, of fer
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Eitered recewable L83 65% 183,638
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Cash A5 111 - 15 115
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i) - .
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) Adardeer pisk feontfnmed)
(i} Iterest rate risk (comtinned)

Titerest vate sensitivity analysis
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The volatility of interest rates movement for the current period is derived from a change
of 25 basis points (“bps™} in interest rates at the statement of finandal position date, This
analysis assumes that all the other variables remain constant.

Augnst 31, 2021
Net impact to net assels attributable to
unitholders

August 31, 2020
Met impadt to net assets atributable to
unitholders

EMMect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

25 bps 25 bps
Increase Decreass
UsD Ush

{456) 456

Effect on net assets of a
change In interest rates

25 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
UsD UsD

{6.371) 6.371

The duration for the debt insgruments held as of August 31, 2021 is 0.1 {2020: 0.1).

The Series Trust's exposure to cash-flow interest rate risk by financial assets and
liabilities comprises primarily of cash, which are held al variable shorl-term market
interest rates. The impact of changes in market interest rates on these balances is not

significant to the Series Trust.

(it} Cwrvercy risk

The Series Trust may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Series
Truat is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
portion of the Series Trust's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies including its

functional currency, US Dollar,

24
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fen) Mearket vish (continued)
(iif} Curverncy risk fcontinued)

The following table sets out the Series Trust's total exposure to foreign currency risk in
US Dollar equivalent at August 31, 2021 and August 31, 2020;

JPY EUR Tatal
Angust 31, 2021 USD USD USD
AsEii
Carh 2565 4207 6772
Inwemmentis deby immruments, @ far value . L1B% 107 1LIES 107
Inceress eecmivable - Ga50 450
Tatal assets 2565 12027164 1,205,329
Liahilities
Accrued expensel - -
Toval liabilives (eocluding set sseets srerlbersblo
the holders of redeemable units) - -
Forward lereign exehange contracis 10568 857 {1,095, 108, 2473751
Total net exposure 10,671 422 TESE 10,679 080
JEY EUR Total
Amgast 30, 2020 UsD UsD USD
Asurts
Cueh Fel e Lo (AR TES
InveAmentin Ssbd instruments, o far value . 1486585 1,486 %85
Ineeren recnivable - 10442 10,842
Total asiets 74032 1,533,701 1,607,740
Liahilities
Mcorued expenses - -
Toval Habilities {exeluding net ssces s ibarablo to
the holders of redsemable units) - -
Ferward foreign exchange contrascis 16547 64 5 (1,523,720 15422916
Total net exposare 17030584 397 17031 556

Amounts in the above tables are based on the carrying value of assets and liabilities and
the notional value of forward foreign exchange contracts.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)

(el Merker visk foontinmed)

{iif} Currency risk fcontinued)
Sensitivity analyvsis

The net expoarre to foreign currency risk of the monetary assets and liabilities at August
30, 2021 was USE 10,679,080 (2020: UUS3 17,031,656), At August 31, 2021, had the U5
Dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with other variables held condant,
net assets atiributable to the holders of redeemable units and change in net asseds
attributable to the holders of redeemable units per the statement of comprehensive
mcome would have decreased by USS 533,954 (2020: USS 851 583}, A 5% weakening of
the US Dollar against the above currencies wonld have resulted in an equal bul opposite
cffect on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

b Credit risk

Credit risk is the nisk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The carrying amounts
of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the statement of
financial position date,

The CAT bonds in which the assets of the Series Trust are invested may be subject to the risk
that the principal or interest of such instruments may not be paid. Adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of
interest and principal. The inability (or perceived inability) of issuers to make timely
payments of interest and principal may affed the value of securities held for the account of
the Series Trust.

In particular, the price of CAT Bends may significantly decrease as a result of a CAT bond
issuer’s defaults or the possibility of its defaults due to the ocanmrence of natural catastrophes
and the gpread of pestilence or exceeding trigger points defined in the bond’s terms.

Credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with an approved broker and other
repitable Onancial insitutions. The Series Trust's financial assets are also held in custody
with established and approved counterparties, All transactions in listed securities are
settled/paid for upon delivery using an approved broker. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet
its obligation. The Series Trust determines concentration risk in relation o exposure to
individual counterparties.
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Substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust are held by the Custodian. Bankruptcy or
insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Series Trust’s rights with respect to investments
and cash and cash equivalents held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Sernies
Trust monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the

Custodian,

The table below summarizes the Moody's credil rating of banks and cudodians in which the
Series Trust's assets are held as at August 31, 2021 and August 31, 2020,

Aungusi 31, 2021

Bank
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody s}

Custodian
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody 'z}

Count 165 of financial denvalves
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody's)

August 31, 2020

Bank
The Bank of New York Mellon {(Moody'z)

Custodian
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody 'z}

Counterparties of financial denivatives
The Bank of New York Mellon (Moody's)

Fair value Credit rating
UsD
625,113 Al
18,225,145 Al
46,328 Al

Fair valae Credit rating

Usmy
2,594,387 Al
15,485,864 Al
jR LY Al
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4  Financial risk management {continued)

o) Liguidity risk

Investment of the Series Trust's assets in relatively illiquid securities may restrict the ability
aof the Manager to digpose of the Series Trud's investments at a price and time that it wishes
to do so. Furthermore, resale of such investments may al times be limited by contractual
provisions, which may itself have an impact on the value of such investments, It is also
possible that an exchange may suspend trading in a particular instrument or contract, order
immediate liquidation and settlement of a particular instrument or contract or order that
trading in a particelar instrument or contract be conducted for liquidation only. The risk of
illiquidity also arises in the case of over-the-counter transactions. There may be no regulated
mizrket in such instruments or contracts, and the bid and offer prices will likely be established
solely by dealers in these instruments or contracts. Investment in non-marketable seaurities
earries liquidity risk, In addition, such securities are difficult to value, and the issuers of such
securities are not always subject to the miles of a regulated market for the protection of
invesdors,

In general CAT Bonds have low liquidity and limited market participants and the market
price of CAT Bonds in the secondary market may be highly volatile. Therefore, the sale
prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted to the preceding prices of these CAT
Bonds. Furthermore, some CAT Bonds may not have a secondary marketl and it may be
necessary to find buyers for these CAT Bonds in over-the-counter transactions. In such case,
the sale prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted the preceding prices of these
CAT Bonds and, as a result, the Series Trust may significantly incur losses.

Furthermore, in case the Series Trust receives substantial subscriptions in a short period of
time and cannot identify sufficient CAT Bonds to invest in while complving with the
invedment restriclions, the Series Trust may be required to temporarily hold substantial
amount of cash. As aresult, the Unitholders exposure to CAT Bonds will be diluted.

In addition, the Series Trust may suspend and’or cancel the repurchase and/or subscription of
tnnls of any class of units in significant circumstances such as the occurrence of significantly
catastrophes to be in the best interests of Unitholders.

Financial ligbilities other than net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units have
residual contractual matirities of less than three months.

{efd Chher risks
Volatifity risk
The prices of derivative instruments are highly volatile, Price movements of forward
contracts, are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand

relationships, trade, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programmes and policies of
govemnments, and national and intemational political and economic events and policies.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)
(el Other risks (eomtinmed)
Velatility risk (continned)

In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain
markets, particularly markets in currencies and interest rate related fiutures and options. Such
intervention often is inended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors,
cause all of such markets to move rapidly i the same direction becanse of, among other
things, interest rate fluctuations.

Techntgues and tnstruments ik

The use of technigues and instruments also involves certain gpecial risks including (1)
dependence on the ability to predict movements in the prices of investments being hedged
and movements in interest rates, (i) imperfect correlation between the hedging instruments
and the investments or market sectors being hedged. (5ii) the fact that skills needed to use
these indruments are different from those needed to select investments, and (iv) possible
impediments te effective portfolio management or the ability to meet repurchase requests.

Early termination of the Series Trust

Altheugh the final repurchase day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
final repurchase day will be brought forward should 3 Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

Unless the Series Trust is terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the
offering documents, the units will be compulsorily repurchased upon the first to ocour of any
of the following:

i} The net asset value on any valuation day on or after 1 July 2022 is US510,000,000 or less,
and the Manager determines that all units should be compulsorily repurchased: or

(il The Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily
repurdhased. (each a Compulsory Repurchase Event™)

COVID- 19 Risk

Since the dart of January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus, which is a rapidly evolving
situation, has adversely mpacted global commercial activities. The rapid development and
fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ultimate impact, which may have a
continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of glabal
economic slowdown, The Manager and the Trustee do not believe that there 15 any financial
impact to the financial statements as at August 31, 2021,

9
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs vsed in making the measurement, The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

»  Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

= [Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly {as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices) (Level 2).

#  Inputs for the asset or liability that @re not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in ils
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpoese, the significance of an input is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that
require significant adjudment based on unobservable inputs, thal measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in ils
entirety requires judgm ent, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Series
Trust. The Senies Trust considers observable data o be market data that is readily available,
regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by

independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
Finanecial instruments meavired @ faiv value through profit or loss

The table below analvzes the financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss at
Amgust 31, 2021 and August 31, 2020 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurement is calegorised:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Angust 31, 2021 Usp UsD UsD UsD
Financial asset at _i'Izz.r vafue
tiraueh profitor loss
Investment in debt instruments = 18,225,145 - 18,225,145
Derpvadive fmancial instromen ts - 46,328 - 46,328
- 18271473 - 18,271,473
s L s cana e
Fraancial abiites at falr value
throuph profit or lozs
Derivative financial instruments - (7.722 - (7,722}
(7,722} - {7,732}
30
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Financial nstriments measured af fidy value through profit oy loss (continued)

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2020 usD usD usD usD
Financial asset at fair value
tirough profit or lozs
Investment in debt instruments - 25485 864 - 254385 864
Derwvative fimancial insruments - 1.110 = 1,110
- 2EABG.9T4 - 32486974
Fruanctad abuines af fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments - (127.504) - (127.504)
- [127.504) - (127.504)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are nod considered to be adive but are valued
based on quoted marker prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within level 2. These include investment in CAT Bonds and
currency forwards.

The investment in CAT Bonds is valued in accordance with the policies described in Note
3akiv)y. The price of the CAT Bonds is derived from the 4 brokers’ bid and asks prices. These
brokers are main market makers in the CAT Bonds market, and they caloulate their prices based
on CAT Bonds transaction prices that are available and open to the public, using their own
pricing model. If there is no transaction available, the brokers calculate the bond price from the
market data of similar bond, There is sufficient information available to measure fair values of the
bonds based on observable market inputs. However, it is possible that the estimated values may
differ significantly from the amount that might ultimately be realised in the near term and the
difference could be material.

Financial invirumenis not measured af foir value through profit or loss
The financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss include:

(i) Cash, interest receivable, other assets and accrued expenses. These are shori-term
financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value,
because of their short-term nature.

{ii) Met assets atiributable to the holder of redeemable units, The Series Trust routinely
repurchases and issues the redeemable units at the amount equal to the proportionate
share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase, calenlated on a basis
consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount
of net assets atiributable to the holder of redeemable units approximates their fair value.
The units are categorised into Level 2 of the fur value hierarchy,

3l
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5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Derivative financial instrunments

The Series Trust enters inte currency forward contracts. A cumency forward contrad 15 an
agreement between two parties to buy or sell a currency at a specified price, al a specified
quantity and on a specified future date. AL inception, there is no exchange of principal amounts
and the net receivable or payable position is settled on maturity, Currency forwards are used to
control and hedge foreign exchange risk attributable to JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class and
USD Semi-Annual Didribution Class,

The following currency forward contracts were outstanding at the reporting date:

Amgust 31, 2021

Mo. of Receivahle Payable Fair Value (net)

Maturity date contracts UsD UsD UsD
Movemnber 12, 2021 3 46,328 (1.722) 38,606
Taotal 46,328 {7,725 38,606

Angust 31, 2020

Mo. of Receivable Fayable Fair Value (net)

Maturity date contracts UsD USD UsSD
November 16, 2020 3 1,110 (127,504) (126,394)
Total 1,110 (127,504) (126,594)

The currencies purchased and sold in the curency forward contrads included: United States
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen, which are in line with the investment objective of the Series
Trust.

The following table sets out the notional exposures on the currency forward contracts.

Augunsi 31, 2021 Fair valne Motional valne
UsD Usn

Derivative assels

Currency forward contracts 46,328 L I1TLET70,000

Derivative labilities

Currency forward contracts {71,722} {1,281 OO0}
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5

Fair value measurements {continued)

Derivative financial insrumenis {(continged)

August 31, 2020 Fair value Notional valwe
UsD Usn

Derivative assels

Cumrency forward contracts 1,110 17 242 852

Derivative liabilities

Currency forward contracks (127 504} {1,652 547

O setting financial asvets and (fnancial Habilities

The Series Trust discloses the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
statemnent of financial position to enable users of the financial statement to evaluate the effect or
potential effedt of vefting arrangements on it financial position for recognised assets and
liabilities, These recognised assets and labilities are financial instruments and  derivative
instruments that are cither subject 1o an enforceable master metting amrangement or similar
agreement or meet the following right of setoff ariteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to
another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to set off, and the Series Trust’s right
of setoff is enforceable at law,

As of August 31, 2021, the Series Trust holds financial instruments and derivative instruments
that are eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and are subject to a master netting
arrangement, The master netting arrangement allows the counterparty o net any collateral held on
behalf of the Series Trust or liabilities or payment obligation of the counterparly agains any
liabilities or payment obligations of Series Trud to the counterparty.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2021 are as fallow:

GFUB_Iﬂ suRks ul'_ Belated aneunts mot ofTset in the statensent
recognised fnancial of Minancial pedtion
mEpts prosented in
the statement of Financial Cash coll ateral
I'(Ln.urjn.'l position Envstrum ents{a) received(a) Met am ount
I
Derivative assts
Currency Forward
CORtTacts
The Bask of Hew
Tork Mellon 45,328 {1,782} - 32605
Tatal 46328 (1,722} = I8 608

33

134/211



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

Notes to financial statements (continued)

5

Fair value measurements {(continued)

(N setting fTnaclaf asvers and ffnancial Habilitfes (continged)

Drerivative Fabillities
Curreney Forward

conkracis

The Bk of Mew
Verk Mellea
Tatal

Gir e am ounts of Belatrd mionints aot ol set in the O tem st

Ooooooooooooooooooad
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recognized fmamcial of Minancial peation
hahilsties pr d
in the statem et of Finasrial Cash coll ateral Pt st
:_-Lﬂi-“ﬂ'-'l position i strum entsia) pledged(a}
(1722 1722
0.7 LACES)

() These amounts are hmited lo the denvative assel or labilities balances and

accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

i These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value,

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2020 are as follow:

Dierivative astz

Currency Torwarid
FORErAE

The Bank of Hew
Tork Mellea
Tatal

G ovx amounts of Eelated mmonnts not ofTset in the statem et

recognised financial of Minancial padtion
anubts pr esented in
the statement of Finaneial Cash eell atiral .
financial position mstrumentaia) recenyeda) -
L1
1,110 {1,130
1,110 {1,110}
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

5  Fair value measurements (continued)

N setting fInaneiaf asers and financial Habilities (conting ed)

v onx wm ountg of Relnted ameunis not offset in the statemmi
recognised finamrial of financlal padtion
Lishilfties presented
in the satement of Finanrial Cash cellateral Het ;
finanrial position mstrum entsiaj pledgeda) e
_)
Derivative Babdities
Cur rEney Farvweard
contracks
The Baek of Hew
Yok Metlan (1275043 1,110 - (126, 3043
Taotal (127 5043 1,110 - {126 354)

) These amounts are himited te the derivative asset or liabilities balances and
accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

4 These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value,
fi Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

et income from financial instruments at FVTPL consists of the following;

For the year For the year
ended August ended August
31,2021 31, 2020
USs» UsD
Interest income 1,372,337 2,506,716
Gross realised (loss) on debt instruments at fair value
through profit and loss (1005218 (2183700
Gross unrealised gain on debt insgtruments at fair value
through profit and loss 1,011,841 616,636
Gross realised (loss)/gain on derivative financial
instrument at fair value through profit and loss (55,259) 6510
Gross unrealised gain/(loss) on derivative financial
instruments at fair value through profit and loss 165,000 {591 883)
MNet Income from financial Instruments at FVTPL 1,488,701 1,719,600
35
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T Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units

The movements in the number of units issued and fully paid are as follows:

Issued and Mully paid

Balance at August 31, 2020
Iszue of units

Repurchase of units

Balance at Augnst 31, 2021

Issued and fully paid

JPY Semi-Annual

USD Semi- Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class
(units) (units)
183065051 1.056, 755478

= 0699 321

{67,484.648) (279.555.875)
115580403 V6,898 924

JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class

USD Semi- Annual
Distributon Class

{units) {units)y
Balance at August 31, 2019 220190677 2,319 960 662
[saie of unils - 17.862.3593
Repurchase of units (37,125.626) (1,281,074.57TT)
Balance at August 31, 2020 183.065.051 1,056,755 478

In respect of the USD Semi-Annual Digribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 10,000 units and thereafler in further one unit increments, For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subseription is USS100,000 and thereafter in further
US50.01 increments.

In respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 1000 units and thereafter in further one unil increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is JPY10,000,000 and thereafter in
further JPY1 increments,

The issue price is USS10.00 per unit in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units and
JPY 10,000 per unit in respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription day at the relevant subscription price. The subscription price shall be, in respect of
cach unit purchased of a class of units on any dealing day, an amount equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units as al the valuation point on the valuation day immediately

preceding such dealing day.
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7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)

Investors wishing to submit units of a class of units for repurchase on a repurchase day must
submit a repurchase notice to the Admimistrator by no later than 6.00 p.m. {Tokyo time} on the
repurchase notice day which immediately precedes such repurchase day or such other time or
times on siuch day or days as the Manager may, in its sole discretion. determmine.

A repurchase day shall be the third business day of each month on which no Series Trust
termination disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time
Lo time determine in respect of the Series Trust or 2 class of units.

The repurchase notice day shall be the 10th calendar day of each month, or, if such day is not a
business day, the immediately following business day, or such other date or dates as the Manager
may determine,

Unitholders will be able to receive an amount in respect of each unit of a class of units
repurchased on any repurchase day prior to the final repurchase day equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units caleulated as at the wvaluation point on the valuation day
immediately preceding such repurchase day as may be adjusted pursuant to the swing pricing
adjustment.

In the event that repurchase notices representing 10% or more of all issued units of a class of
units have been received or the Manager and Trustee determine that the liquidation of the
investments of the Series Trust would not be practicable or would be prejudicial to unitholders,
the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may elect to postpone a unitholder’s repurchase, in
whole or in part, in such manner as the Manager may determine.

Distribuiions

The Manager may, following consuliation with the Investment Manager, determine that
distributions be payable in respect of each class of units on a semi-annual basis on each
distribution declaration date, taking into account factors including bul not limited to the net
investment income, nel realised md unrealised capital gains and capital attributable to the
refevant class of units and received during the relevant distribution period.

Distributions will be made to those persons shown as the registered holders of units on the
distribution record day immediately preceding such distribution declaration date.  The Manager
may. following consultation with the Investment Manager, where it deems appropriate, elect that
a distribution be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units (and
which may also be in excess of any capital gainy over a distribution period, where it deems that
the amount of nel investment income. net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital
attributable to the relevant class of units received during the relevant distribution period to be
insufficient of itself to fund that semi-annual distribution.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)
T Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)
Distributions fcontinued)

The Manager may also elect that a semi-annual distribution is not pavable in respect of units for a
relevant digtribution period, notwithstanding its option to use the investment principal attributable
to the units. Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not
limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trud's
investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previons six
menths or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems. following consultation
with the Investment Manager, il appropriate 1o make such an election,

Upon the termination of the Series Trust, the Trustee will distribute to the existing unitholders in
proporiion to the units held by them, all cash proceeds derived from the realization of the assets
of the Series Trust. The Trustee may retain the necessary cash proceeds for provision for all costs,
debts, liabilities, charges, expenses, claims and demands properly incumed or made by the
Trustee and whether or not incurred or made in connection with or arising out of the termination,

During the year ended August 31, 2021, there were distributions of USS 429,714 (2020
LI585 76,81%) to the holders of redecmable units.

8  Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability 1o control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party inmaking financial or operational decisions.

Credit Suisse Intemational acts in capacity as Fee Agent of the Series Trugt, and represents a
related party by wirtue of its ability to exercise significant influence by virtue of common
ownership by their ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Fee Agent is entitled
o receive a Fee Agent fee of 0.12% per snnum of the net asset value accrued on a daily basis and
calaulated as at each valuation day out of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Fee Agent fee for
the year amounted to WSS 25977 (2020: USS 40.948) with US% 3883 (2020: USS 5959)
outstanding accrued fees payable to the Fee Agent at the end of the vear,

The Manager is a related party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Series Trust Deed
and by virue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the fee agent fee a management fee of USSE,000 per
annum payable monthly in arears, paid by the Fee Agent.
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Notes to linancial statements (continued)

8 Related party transactions (continued)

The Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the discretionary day-
le-day investment decision-making responsibility over the Sub-Advised Portfolio and the
management of the Currency Forwards, which is delegated by the Manager by the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement, The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of
0,702 per annum of the net asset value accrued on a daily basis, caleulated as at each valuation
day and payable quarterly in amears out of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Investment
Manager fee for the year amounted to USS 151,499 (2020: USSE 233 888) with USS 22,653 (2020
188 34,759) oulstanding acerued fees pavable to the Investment Manager at the end of the year.

The Sub-Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the day-to-day
investment decision-making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio; which is further delegated by the
Investment Manager by the terms of the Sub-Investment Management Agreement. The Sub-
Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of (.50% per annum of the net asset value accrued
on a daily basis, caloulated on each valuation day and paid by the Investment Manager out of the
investment manager fees. Total Sub-Investment Manager fee for the vear amounted to
LSS 108,214 (2020; USS 170,634) with USS 16,181 (2020: USE 24,828} outstanding accrued
fees payable to the Sub-Investment Manager at the end of the vear.

The Trustee is a related party by virtue its affiliation with the Series Trust due to its possession of
complete authority over the operations and management of the Series Trust, The Trustee is
entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USE10,000 per annum pavable annually in advance out of
the assets of the Series Trust, The Trustee is also reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust
for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

9 Subsequent events
Manager and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and is coordinating
itz aperational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global

health organisations, relevant governments. and general pandemic response best practices,

Subsequent to August 31, 2021, and as al December 21, 2021, the Series Trust has no
subscriptions and recorded repurchases of USS 638.256 and digtributions US3 356,619,

In preparing these financial satements, management has evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to December 21, 2021, which is the date that the financial statements were
available for issue.
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2021 12
17,918,178.65 2,060,948,908
545,849.37 62,783,595
17,372,329.28 1,998,165,314
105,855.524
766,196.625

10,114

10.54 1,212
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2021 12

1,935,578,210
1,648,008

11 32,064,569
7,793,768,536
293,320,639
27 182,257,271,267
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2019 2019 12 31 2020 2020
12 31
22 38
59 131

23 103

2021 12 30
115.02
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2020 2019

UsD UsD
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
220,000 25,304 215,000 24,729
(21) @
236,025 27,148 249,513 28,699
(111,476) (12,822)  (143,734) (16,532)
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

usb usb
9 1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
10 220,970 25,416 217,427 25,008
1,864,766 214,485 1,653,613 190,199
10 217,933 25,067 131,329 15,105
217,933 25,067 131,329 15,105
11 735,000 84,540 735,000 84,540
911,833 104,879 787,284 90,553
1,646,833 189,419 1,522,284 175,093
1,864,766 214,485 1,653,613 190,199

2021 10

Brian Burkholder
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2020 12 31
usb usb usD
2020
735,000 84,540 787,284 90,553 1,522,284 175,093
124,549 14,326 124,549 14,326
12 31 735,000 84,540 911,833 104,879 1,646,833 189,419
2019

735,000 84,540 681,505 78,387 1,416,505 162,926
105,779 12,167 105,779 12,167
12 31 735,000 84,540 787,284 90,553 1,522,284 175,093
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2020 2019
usD USD
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
(16,025) (1,843) (34,534) (3,972)
21 2
108,524 12,482 71,266 8,197
(3.,543) (408) (10,575) (1,216)
(3.543) (408) (10,575) (1,216)
86,604 9,961 127,594 14,676
86,604 9,961 127,594 14,676
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
207,610 23,879 222,819 25,629
207,610 23,879 222,819 25,629
1,436,186 165,190 1,213,367 139,561
1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
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KY 1104
309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands
IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB
IFRS
UsD
usD
usD
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IFRS

ECL
ECL
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2020

IAS I1AS

1ASB IFRS

15

2020 2019

16,025 34,534
16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105, 756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2019 5,000 2020 12 31
REITa
a
a
CS
usS
usS
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT
J REIT
17 20
CAT

HOLT
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PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI PICTET
J REIT
uS

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
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2020 2019

217,933 131,329

217,933 131,329
2020 2019

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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13
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000
220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000
214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573
2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756
14

2020 12 31
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16

17

2021

10
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Erack! Suisse Managamen! (Capman) Limited
Financial sinfamanis far the year sndad 31 Decombar 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

UsSD H:ﬂf%gﬂ 2020 2019

IO, . e e s e UIRO0S - BADSE
- of which Interest income from instruments al amortised cosf 16,085 34,534
Met interest income 4 16,025 34,534

Benvicefee income e T T e, 000 216,000
Other loss = (21)
Met revenues 236,025 249,513

‘General, adminisirative and other operating expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 124,549 105,779

Profit before tax 124,549 105,779

Income fax expense 7 - -
Profit after tax 124,549 105,778

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cradit Sulsse Managemant (Cayman) Limilad

Molas fo Financial stalamants for the year ended 3] Decanher 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

UsSD B;’*m 2020 2019
Assets

‘Cash and due from banks T A 1643706 1,436,186
‘Other assets 7 UV T T as0 g0 a7 49T
Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613

Liabilities

OIS e s 5 TS

Total liabilities 217,933 131,329

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 11 735,000 735,000

Refained eamings T 971,838 787,984
Total shareholders' equity 1,646,833 1,522,284

Taotal liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,864,766 1,653,613

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 June 2024

Director

e g ot T B

Brian Burkholder

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cradif Susss Managamand (Capman) Limited
Males fo Financial statements for ha year andad 31 Decembay 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share  Retained

uso capital earnings Tetal
I —
Balance at 1Janvary 735000 787,284 1,522,284
Profit for the year - 124,549 124,549
Balance at 31 Decembear 735,000 911,833 1,646,833
01D et e nnenne
(BalanceattJanvary 735000 681,505 1416505
Profit for the year — 105779 105,779
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522 284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statermernts.
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Erodi! Swisse Mansgemen! (Cayman) Limilsd
Neadas by Financinl statemants far the year ended 31 Decenibar 2000

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Reterarce 2020 2018
UsD lo Kole
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 124,548 105,778

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other adjustments:

Interast Income 4 {16,025) (34,534)
T e =
Cash generated from operating activities

before changes in operating assets and

liabilities 108,524 71,266
MNet (ncrease) Inoperating ansete: . i

Other assets - (3543)  (10,575)
Met (increase) in uperating assets (3.543) (10,575)
Net increase in operating liabilities:
Other liabilities 86,604 127,594
MNetincrease in operating liabilities 86604 127,594
Interast income received 4 16,025 34 534
Net cash generated from operating activity 207,610 222,819
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 207,610 222 819
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,436,185 1,213,367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186
Cash and due from banks 0 1,643,796 1,436,188
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The accomparying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Creat Suizze Managemnant (Cryman) Limiled
Mafes fo Financial stalements for the year anded 31 Decamber 020

Notes to the financial statements
Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited lability. The Company's principal activities are the creafion of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts. The Company's registered office is ¢/o Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman kY 1-1104, Cayman Islands,

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporling Standards ("FRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Infernational Financial Reporting Standards, International Accourting Standards (lASs") and
Interpretations issued by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (MIASB®). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below,

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparafion of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about camying values of
assets and liabilifies that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revsions to
accourting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the peried of the revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both
curent and future periods.

Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation currency is United States Dollars ("USD®). Foreign
cumency transactions during the year are franslated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pericd.  Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fareign currency
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, Mon-
menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curencies that are stated af fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or bogs,
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Crpdll] Siisse Managaman! (Cayman) Limited
Notes fo Financial shrlamants for [fe e andad 31 Decambey 2020

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Other assets

Other assets are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amorised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") (refer to Mote 2{g)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parfies without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtiul
debts.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain iming or amount when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required o setile the obligation and a refiable estimate cash be made. Where the
time value of money s matedal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated rellably, the obligation is disclosed as a confingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible cbligations, whose existence will anly be confirmed
by the ocourrence or non-gccurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment

The carrying armount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence
exists, the assel's recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An
impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amaunt. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts of future econamic conditions available at the
reporting date, This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probability-weighted basis.

Revenue recognition

Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, service fee income is recognised in profit or loss when
the investment management service is provided.

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
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Credh Suizse Managemen! (Cayman) Limied
Notes o Financial s falsments far the yoar ended 31 Decembar 2020

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered fo be related to the Company if:
(@) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that person:
{i) has control or joint control ever the Compary;
{i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is refated to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(il The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member].

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entily is an associate of the
third party.

& The entrtrl'};r is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entily related to the Compary.

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vil) A person identified in ()} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the enfity),

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Compary has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020;
* Definition of Material — amendments 1o IAS 1 and IAS 8
& Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected fo significantly affect the cument or future periods.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The |ASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting pericd of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Company’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in Mote (k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (Mote 15),
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Crach Suisse Managemend (Cimyman) Limiled
Nafes lo Financial stafemants for the year ended 31 Decembar 2000

Met Interest Income

usb 2020 2019
Net interest income

Interest income on cash and due frombanks 16025 34,534
Total interest income 16,025 34,534

All the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost.

Service Fee Income

The principal activilies of the Company are the creafion of frusts and the adminisiration and
management of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

usp 2020 2019
Revenues
Total revenues 220,000 215,000

General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

uspD 2020 2019
General administrative and other operating expenses

Other expenses — (34,668)
Eankcha.rgesU.IBQ}{IQH
Adiocveronenton o @d0ly @)
Direciors' remuneration 07,0090 (105,756)
Total general administrative and other operating expenses (111,476) {143,734)

All of the above expenditures are payable fo the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company setiles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,

profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2029, Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements,

10
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Crpcitt Suizse Management (Cayman) Limited
Nodas fo Financiad stalamants for the year snded 31 Decamber 2020

Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidaled struciured entities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either ils name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there iz a general expectation from the
market that the Compary is associated with the structured entity or the Company was involved in the
design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entity.

The below unconsolidated structured enfities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2019: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 December 2020:

Ghbal REIT Income Npha Fund {Fnr Guahﬁad Instrtuhonal Imesters Cint.r]
_AusTrallan ngh Dmdand Eqr.uty Twm .P'.Ipha Fund I{Fr::r Qualified Insirtup{_:n_al Imresinrs Gnly}

US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Gualified Institutional Investers Only)
Principal / CS Cana-:ﬁan Eq.hrl'_l,r Income Fund {Fnr Oual-f-ed Inﬂntulu::nal Inveﬂims 'Dn }l
Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualfied Institutional Investors Only)
us ngh Div Equd}r F‘remlwn Fum:l {For Ouallfned Institutional Investurs 'Dniy]-
US Smalf Csp Eg_u_rg_r_l_:'_rermum Fund {Fur Qualified Inshiutlona! In'.raﬁtnrs Elnbrj
Daiwa Emarglng Local Market Band Fund {For {]ualrfued Institutional IrT'.-'Estors Only)
US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Insitutional investors c}m;.r} o

Japan Equity Premium Fund (Fer Qualified lnsmmmnm Irrlfestnrs Only)

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onll.r]

AMP Australia Income Bond Fl.md I:Fcrr 'Dualrﬁ&d Insiltuhona.l Irvestors Dnl}.-']

‘Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional lwvestors On)
Daiwa Brazilian Real Emd Fund {For Duallfled 1nstllutlnnal Investors Only)
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMP Australia REIT Fund I:Fnr {]ualmed Instuiumunal In-.res’mr:; Drﬂy}
J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investers Only)
%ﬂ American High Dwidend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
‘_Darwa ﬁmancan FfEiT Duattro [ncume Fund (Fm Cu.-a_ﬁhad Institutional Investu!s_ﬂnly}

Shinsei World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified Institufional Investors Only)
Shinsei World Wrap Growth Type (For Qualified Instifutional Investors Only)
US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {Fﬂr Gua!rfmd Ir!stliuhmal Investors Gnl}f]
Japanese Govemment Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (Fer Qualfied institutional nvestors Only)
Australia REIT Fund

METFHII&REITFILJ:, o G B e o B e, e i B e A P R S i b e
_US TrEasur}rE -7 Year Ladc_lf_:rFund {Fnr Cl:l.ka!ifbed |ﬂ51|1l.r!m[ Im&stnm E}m}r}
US Muricipal Bond Fund ’
.Tukmf'.ﬂanne,CATEmﬂFuﬁd e T e ey e e v e

_Ghbal ngh Dmdew‘nd Equt!)r Premlum Fund I{Ful ﬂualrﬁad Insh’:utﬂ:nal 1I'I'|.I'$T;1NS Only}
_Haste:‘s_fl_ul_lactmn

'HOLT Euro Equity Premium Fund [For 'Duahfled Instllutlnnal Imfsstﬂrs On[y}

PIMCO & EhnriTerm !nmme Stra't&gyr-und o

1
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Crechl Sefsse Managamant (Cajarsan) Limited
Modas o Finamncid $lafemanis far!.he,mruwbd’j‘]’ Decambar 2020

Unconsclidated Structured Entities (continued)
PIMCO Short Term Strategy

‘Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onby)

FDFEIQH Dencumlnated ‘Man AHL Smart Lw:rage Stra]egy Fund

SBI F’k:let Asla Hl-Tech ‘ul'enture Fund

ALID Shnrt Term Eh:nnd Fund T

Asia Equﬂy income Plus Strateg}r Fund (an Cualified Insh’tuhnnal lnvestors Dnl].r]

JREIT Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)” S

LIS_'_'I{.?{L_:?__E_qurt:,-' ‘Concentrated Fund {Fclr Qualified Institutional Investors G_dﬂ].f}

‘Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified institutional investors Only)"
Mlde Cantral Equrl‘y Fund I:Fur Duallfled Instllutlnnal Inl..festms Dnl:.r}

* The funds were terminated during 2020.

The Comparry has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was
not conteactually required to provide.

The Company does not curently have the intenfion to provide financial or other suppor fo
unconsolidated structured entities that it Is not contractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Usb 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,435,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,186

Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2020 2019
Other assets

Interest and fees recevable 220,970 217 427
Total other assets 220,970 217,427
UsD 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Irterest and fees payable 217,933 131,329
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

12
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Creaif Swisse Managameant {Cayman) Limiled
MNotes to Financial slafernents for the year ended 31 Decembar 2090

Share Capital

Authorised and issued share capital

2020 2019
Mo. of usD Mo. of usb
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares 35,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The heolders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dwvidends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company, All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard fo the Company's residual assefs.

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a geing concern so that it can continue to provide retums to sharehalders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost, As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capial structure is regulary reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capifal struciure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, 1o
the extent that these do not condlict with the directors® fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in fhe current period,
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidty, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business, These risks are managed by the Company’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Credit rick

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that ane party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an cbligation. Management regulardy monitors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maxdmum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carmying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

13
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Credit Susze Management (Capman) Limiled
Motes to Financial staterants for the year ended 21 Dacembear 2020

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Company's policy is to regulady monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 Decermber 2020 and 2019, all of the Company's financial liabilities, which includes all ereditors
and aceruals, are on demand or undated and are expacted to be settled within three months.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2020 and 2019, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company,

Foreign cumency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hang Kong dollars ("HKD").

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers that the risk of movements in exchange
rates between USD and HKD fo be insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2018,

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related parly transactions.

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Parent Fellow Total Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
Usp Companies Companies
Assals
her azsels - 200,853 200,863 = 215,000 245,000
Toltal assets — 220,863 220,863 = 215,000 215,000
Liabilities and Equity
Other liabililes 214,732 - #4737 25,573 - 25573
Share capital 735,000 - 735,000 735,000 - 735,000
Total liabilities and
sharehalders' equity 848,732 - 944,732 760,573 — 760,573
14
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Credit Swisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Notes to Financial staternants for the year ended 31 Decamber 2090

Material Related Party Transactions {(continued)

Related party revenues and expenses

2020 2019
Parent Fallow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
uso Companles Companies
Revenues
Seviceleeincome ~ — 290000 220,000 — 215000 215,000
Totel revenues: - 220,000 220,000 - 215,000 215,000

Remuneration of key management personnel

Ramuneration of key management persannel (USD) 2020 2019
Shart-farm amployee banafits 107,083 105,756
Total Remuneration of key ranagement personnel 107,003 105,756

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Keng and the ultimate contreling party of the Company is Credil
Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerdand. Credit Suisse Group AG praduces financial
statements available for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain new accourting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatary for
31 December 2020 reporing pericds and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Subsequent Events

There have been no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial period,
which significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in fulure financial years.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 10
June 2001,

15
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2021 12 100

Intertrust N.V.

The Bank of New York Mellon

2021 11 3,500
2017 30 6,000
7,300
2021 12 405

Credit Suisse International

2021 12 113 6,600
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the "Series Trust"), a series-trust of
Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il which comprise the statement of financia position as at August 31,
2021, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity, net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at August 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,

or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

December 21, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 3 to 15,
which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of materia misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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